ANNUAL REPORT CHECKLIST

PROVIDER(S): Mercy Retirement and Care Center
CCRC(S): Mercy Retirement and Care Center
PROVIDER CONTACT PERSON: Bing Isenberg

TELEPHONE NO.: (510) 220-2731 EMAIL:bisenberg@eldercarealliance.org
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A complete annual report must consist of 3 copies of all of the following: x
%Annual Report Checklist.

4922
Q/Annual Provider Fee in the amount of: $250 (O If applicable, late fee in the amount of:
S

lZ/Certification by the provider’s Chief Executive Officer that:
The reports are correct to the best of his/her knowledge.
Each continuing care contract form in use or offered to new residents has been
approved by the Department.
The provider is maintaining the required liquid reserves and, when applicable,
the required refund reserve.

D/Evidence of the provider’s fidelity bond, as required by H&SC section 1789.8.

(E( Provider’s audited financial statements, with an accompanying certified public
accountant’s opinion thereon.

D/Provider’s audited reserve reports (prepared on Department forms), with an
accompanying certified public accountant’s opinion thereon. (NOTE: Form 5-5 must be
signed and have the required disclosures attached (H&SC section 1790(a)(2) and (3)).

“Continuing Care Retirement Community Disclosure Statement” for each
community.

%orm 7-1, “Report on CCRC Monthly Service Fees” for each community.



§ Form 9-1, “Calculation of Refund Reserve Amount”, if applicable.
M(ey Indicators Report (signed by CEO or CFO (or by the authorized person who signed

the provider’s annual report)). The KIR may be submitted along with the annual report,
but is not required until 30 days later.

June 2014




FORM 1-1

RESIDENT POPULATION
Line Continuing Care Residents TOTAL
[1] Number at beginning of fiscal year 0
[2] Number at end of fiscal year 11
[3] Total Lines 1 and 2 11
[4] Multiply Line 3 by .50 and enter result on Line 5. x .50
[5] Mean number of continuing care residents 5.5
All Residents
[6] Number at beginning of fiscal year 115
71 Number at end of fiscal year 126
[8] Total Lines 6 and 7 241
[9] Multiply Line 8 by ".50" and enter result on Line 10 x .50
[10] Mean number of all residents 120.5
Divide the mean number of continuing care residents (Line 5) by the mean
[11] number of all residents (Line 10) and enter the result (round to two decimal 4.56%
places)
FORM 1-2
ANNUAL PROVIDER FEE
Line TOTAL
m Total Operating Expenses $23,132,941
[a] Depreciation 1,991,537
[b] Debt Service (Interest Only) $933,358
[2} Subtotal (add Line 1a and 1b) $2,924,895
[3] Subtract Line 2 from Line 1 and enter result $20,208,046
[4] Percentage allocated to continuing care residents (Form 1-1, Line 11) 4.56%
[5] Total Operating Expense of Continuing Care Residents
(multiply Line 3 by Line 4) $922,358.95
x .001
[6] Total Amount Due (multiply Line 5 by .001) $922
PROVIDER: Mercy Retirement and Care Center, a Long-Term Care Community
COMMUNITY: Mercy Retirement and Care Center




@ Mercy Retirement
& CARE CENTER

An Elder Care Alliance Community

November 30, 2023

Department of Social Services
Community Care Branch

744 P Street, M.S. 9-14-91
Sacramento, CA 95814

To Whom It May Concern,

I, Adriene Iverson, Chief Executive Officer of Mercy Retirement and Care
Center, certify that the enclosed continuing care reserve report is correct to
the best of my knowledge;

1) that the annual reserve reports and any amendments thereto are
fairly stated;

2) that each continuing care contract in use for residents has been
approved by the Department of Social Services; and

3) that Mercy Retirement and Care Center maintains the required
reserves for prepaid continuing care contracts, statutory reserves,
and refund reserves as of the date of this letter.

Sincerely,

Wunanic Sresan?

Adriene lverson
Chief Executive Officer




L

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)
12/16/2022

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

TMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. i
SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this

certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER el Underwriting Associate
Caring Communities Shared Services LTD PHON;E FAX
1850 W. Winchester Road (AIC No,Exty: __B47-549-8225 | A% noy  B47-549-8095
Suite 109 E#DI?RI’IESS: Certificates@caringcomm.org
Libertyville L 60048
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

INSURED Elder Care Alliance INSURER A: Caring Communities, A Reciprocal RRG 12373
Mercy Retirement and Care Center INSURER B:
3431 Foothill Blvd INSURER C:
Oakland CA 94601 INSURER D

INSURER E:
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADD'L|SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LR TYPE OF INSURANCE ISR | wvp POLICY NUMBER MDA sy LIMITS
EACH OCCURRENCE
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CCRRRG-0036-23 01/01/2023 | 01/01/2024 [oacioap it $ 1.000.000.00
| cLaims mape OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurence) | ® 300,000.00
| X | Professional Liability-Claims Made MED EXP (Any one person) | $ -
X | PL Retro Date 06/30/2012 PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $ 1,000,000.00
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000.00
x | poLicy D PRO- I:] LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG | § incl
OTHER: SIR Per Claim $ 50,000.00
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY E:Egngggﬂseo )S'NGLE Limir 1 ¢
| | ANYAUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) |$
- ﬁblrl'gSWNED is!l-"ggULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
NON-OWNED
|| HREDAUTOS AUTOS S Bonty MAGE s
s
EACH OCCURRENCE
A T overeria uss X occurat CCRRRG-0036-23 01/01/2023 | 01/01/2024 :_-10,000,000,00
= *Sublimits apply AGGREGATE $ 10,000,000.00
| X | Excess Lias CLAIMS MADE-PL *AUTO $ __ 10,000,000.00
*EMP BEN $ 5,000,000.00
DEDUCTIBLE $
x RETENTION  $ 0 $
PER OTH-
EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY i STATUTE [ | ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? |j N/A E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
Mandato
@ o atory In N E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYES$
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT |$
OTHER
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached If more space is required)
12/16/2022 12:15:15
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Mercy Retirement and Care Center
3431 Foothill Bivd

Oakland CA 94601

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
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@ MOSSADAMS

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Mercy Retirement and Care Center

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Mercy Retirement and Care Center (‘MRCC”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2023, and the related statements of

activities, and changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Mercy Retirement and Care Center as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its
net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards (Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of MRCC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mercy
Retirement and Care Center's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that
the financial statements are available to be issued.




Auditor’s Responstbilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of MRCC's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about MRCC's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards as shown on page 29 as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated

November 27, 2023 on our consideration of Mercy Retirement and Care Center's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Mercy Retirement and Care
Center's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Mercy Retirement
and Care Center's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

M s 19

San Francisco, California
November 27, 2023
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Patient and resident accounts receivable, net
Pledge and other receivables
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total current assets

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE
Restricted by donor (Note 8)

Total assets limited as to use
INTEREST RATE SWAPS (Note 6)
INVESTMENTS
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net of accumulated depreciation
OTHER ASSETS

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Term loan payable, current maturities
Construction note payable, current maturities
Due to related party

Total current liabilities

TERM LOAN PAYABLE, net of current maturities
RELATED PARTY NOTE PAYABLE

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes.

$ 1,548,834
3,275,360
1,075,959

196,336

6,096,489

3,665,920

3,665,920

2,528,241
6,610,269
40,136,171
5,095

_$59,042,185_

$ 873,659
1,239,723
290,400
140,774

271,986

2,816,542

23,813,968

1,500,000

28,130,510

25,558,928

5,352,747
30,911,675
_$50,042,185
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended June 30, 2023
Net Assets Net Assets
Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
REVENUES, GAINS, AND OTHER SUPPORT
Monthly rent $ 4,837,401 $ - $ 4,837,401
Net health services revenue 11,464,788 - 11,464,788
In-kind food contributions 4,561,052 - 4,561,052
Other resident services revenue 155,374 - 165,374
Net assets released from restrictions for operations 1,467,043 (1,467,043) -
Total revenues, gains, and other support 22,485,658 (1,467,043) 21,018,615
EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Salaries and benefits 10,336,376 - 10,336,376
Purchased services and other 6,894,796 - 6,894,796
Donated food 4,437,917 - 4,437,917
Supplies 1,835,045 - 1,835,045
Depreciation and depletion 1,991,637 - 1,991,537
Interest and fees 933,358 - 933,358
Management fee 1,330,561 - 1,330,561
Other expenses 50,979 - 50,979
Total expenses and losses 27,810,569 - 27,810,569
Operating loss (5,324,911) (1,467,043) (6,791,954)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Contributions revenue 986,061 2,573,810 3,559,871
Unrealized gains on interest rate swaps 1,014,038 - 1,014,038
Investment return, net of investment expenses 808,839 430,880 1,239,719
Total other income 2,808,938 3,004,690 5,813,628
(Deficiency) excess of revenues over expenses (2,515,973) 1,637,647 (978,326)
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTION
FOR BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS AND EQUIPMENT 1,657,394 (1,657,394) -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (858,579) (119,747) (978,326)
NET ASSETS, beginning of year 26,417,507 5,472,494 31,890,001
NET ASSETS, end of year $ 25,558,928 $ 5,352,747 $ 30,911,675

See accompanying notes.
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from noncontract residents $ 15,009,935
Cash received from contributions 1,949,232
Cash received from other resident services 155,374
Cash received from interest 28,180
Cash paid to related party (1,399,627)
Cash paid for interest (924,053)
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (20,276,788)
Net cash used in operating activities (5,457,747)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments ' (148,797)
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,354,119
Purchase of property and equipment (1,860,087)
Net cash used in investing activities (654,765)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from contributions restricted for investment in buildings and equipment 927,696
Principal paid on related party note payable (500,000)
Principal paid on construction note payable (359,273)
Payment of debt issuance costs (15,456)
Proceeds from construction note payable 2,181,259
Net cash provided by financing activities 2,234,226
NET CHANGE IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH (3,878,286)
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH, beginning of year 5,427,120
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND RESTRICTED CASH, end of year $ 1,548,834

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
Change in undistributed in-kind food contributions $ 123,135

See accompanying notes.
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
used in operating activities:
Contributions restricted for buildings and equipment
Unrealized gains on interest rate swaps
Unrealized gains on investments
In-kind food contributions
Distribution of food received in-kind
Depreciation expense
Interest capitalized
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Patient and resident accounts receivable
Pledge and other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other
Due to related party

Net cash used in operating activities

See accompanying notes.

(978,326)

(927,696)
(1,014,038)
(1,211,539)
(4,561,052)

4,437,917
1,991,537
(64,180)

(1,292,254)
(521,792)
144,387
(1,557,872)
157,894
(60,733)

(5,457,747)
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 — Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of operations — Mercy Retirement and Care Center (‘MRCC") is a California nonprofit public
benefit corporation organized for the purposes of providing residences, assistance with daily living needs,
and skilled nursing care for elderly persons. The facilities include 166 units licensed as residential care,
including a 22-unit memory care facility and 59 units licensed as skilled nursing. Beginning on

December 28, 2011, MRCC began offering a “continuing care” concept in which resident enters into a
residential contract that generally provides for a specific entrance fee and for monthly service fees
throughout the residents’ tenancy. Generally, payment of these fees entitles residents to the use and
privileges of MRCC for life. There are 11 residents at June 30, 2023, that have paid entrance fees.

Residents are also entitled to certain healthcare services provided in the MRCC assisted living and skilled
nursing facility. The residency agreement does not entitle the residents to an ownership interest in
MRCC. MRCC generates its revenues primarily from residential care and skilled nursing fees.

MRCC is a subordinate corporation to Elder Care Alliance (“ECA-Corporate”) and operates under a
common management team through ECA-Corporate. ECA-Corporate is a California nonprofit public
benefit corporation, exempt from federal and state income taxes, established on December 6, 1996. ECA-
Corporate is cosponsored by the Sierra Pacific Synod of the Evangelical Lutheran Church in America (the
“Lutheran Synod”) and the Institute of the Sisters of Mercy of the Americas (the “Sisters of Mercy”)
together, the "ECA-Corporate Members".

On May 15, 1997, MRCC entered into an affiliation agreement. Under the terms of this agreement, ECA-
Corporate became the sole corporate member of MRCC. ECA-Corporate provides management services
for supportive housing, skilled nursing, rehabilitation, and social services principally to the aged through
MRCC and other subordinate corporations. MRCC retained its individual identity, assets and liabilities,
and relationships with its individual sponsors and operates under a common management team through
ECA-Corporate.

As of May 2023, the two ECA-Corporate Members of ECA-Corporate were removed via an Articles of
Incorporation and Bylaws amendment. This was approved by the ECA-Corporate Board as well as both
ECA-Corporate Members. The revised ECA-Corporate Articles of Incorporation were filed with the
California Secretary of State in July 2023.

ECA-Corporate was established with the support and leadership of CommonSpirit Health (formerly known
as Dignity Health). The shared vision of CommonSpirit Health, ECA-Corporate and its cosponsors, the
Lutheran Synod, and the Sisters of Mercy was to create a network of faith-centered, nonprofit elder care
facilities and services to meet the needs of the burgeoning population of elderly people who seek support
and assistance with activities of daily living in a non-institutional environment.

Basis of presentation — The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting, which recognizes income in the period earned and expenses when incurred and is consistent
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (‘U.S. GAAP”).




Mercy Retirement and Care Center
‘ Notes to Financial Statements

Use of estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and cash held in
demand deposit, sweep, and savings accounts; and certain assets in highly liquid instruments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Patient and resident accounts receivable, net — As part of its mission to serve the community, MRCC
may provide care to residents even though the residents may lack means to pay. MRCC manages its
resources and/or collection risk by regularly reviewing its accounts and contracts and by providing
appropriate allowances based upon a review of outstanding receivables, historical collection information,
and existing economic conditions. Accounts receivable are stated at net realizable value from third-party
payors, residents, and others.

For receivables associated with services provided to patients who have third-party coverage, MRCC
analyzes contractually due amounts and provides additional implicit price concession, if necessary, based
upon historical collection history for deductibles and copayments on accounts for which the third-party
payor had not yet paid or for remaining payor balances.

For receivables associated with self-pay patients, which include both patients without insurance and
patients with deductible and copayment balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part of the
bill, MRCC records a significant implicit price concession in the period of service on the basis of its past
experience, which indicates that many patients are unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for
which they are financially responsible. The difference between the standard rates (or the discounted rates
if negotiated or provided by policy) and the amounts actually collected after all reasonable collection
efforts have been exhausted is reflected as a reduction in accounts receivable.

Pledge and other receivables — Pledges and other receivables consist primarily of pledges received
from donors.

Investments and investment return — Investment in equity securities having a readily determinable fair
value and all debt securities are carried at fair value. Other investments are valued at the lower of cost (or
fair value at time of donation, if acquired by contribution) or fair value. Investment return includes
dividend, interest, and other investment income; realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments
carried at fair value; and realized gains and losses on other investments. In accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”") No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit
Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (*ASU 2016-14"),
investment return is net of investment manager expenses.

Investment return that is initially restricted by donor stipulation and for which the restriction will be
satisfied in the same year is included in net assets without donor restriction. Other investment return is
reflected in the statement of activities and changes in net assets as without and with donor restriction
based upon the existence and nature of any donor or legally imposed restrictions.

Assets limited as to use — Assets limited as to use include assets restricted by donors.
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Notes to Financial Statements

Property and equipment — Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost and depreciated
using the straight-line method based over the estimated useful life of each asset. MRCC capitalizes
property and equipment with a cost of greater than $1,000. Costs of maintenance and repairs are
charged to expense as incurred.

The estimated useful lives for each major depreciable classification of property and equipment are as
follows:

Land improvements 20 years
Building and improvements 15 to 40 years
Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years

Donations of property and equipment are reported at fair value as an increase in net assets without donor
restrictions unless use of the assets is restricted by the donor. Monetary gifts that must be used to
acquire property and equipment are reported as contributions with donor restriction. The expiration of
such restrictions is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions when expenditures for
construction in progress or property and equipment are incurred that satisfy donor restriction.

Long-lived asset impairment — MRCC evaluates the recoverability of the carrying value of long-lived
assets whenever events or circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If a long-
lived asset is tested for recoverability and the undiscounted estimated future cash flows expected to result
from the use and eventual disposition of the asset are less than the carrying amount of the asset, the
asset cost is adjusted to fair value and an impairment loss is recognized as the amount by which the
carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value. No asset impairment was recognized during
the year ended June 30, 2023.

Due to related party — Due to related party includes liabilities for management services, centralized
purchases and other administrative services due to ECA-Corporate.

Professional liability claims — MRCC recognizes an accrual for professional claim liabilities based on
estimated ultimate losses and costs associated with settling claims and a receivable to reflect the
estimated insurance recoveries, if any. Professional liability claims are described more fully in Note 11.

Workers’ compensation liability claims — MRCC recognizes an accrual for workers’ compensation
claim liabilities based on estimated ultimate losses and costs associated with settling claims and a
receivable to reflect the estimated insurance recoveries, if any. Workers' compensation liability claims are
described more fully in Note 11.

Health reimbursement arrangement - MRCC recognizes an accrual for claim liabilities based on
estimated ultimate losses and costs associated with settling claims and a receivable to reflect the
estimated insurance recoveries, if any. Health reimbursement arrangement liability claims are described
more fully in Note 11.
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Notes to Financial Statements

Interest rate swaps — MRCC entered into three interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risks on the
construction note payable. Swaps are contracts to exchange, for a period of time, the investment
performance of one underlying instrument for the investment performance of another instrument without
exchanging the instruments themselves. MRCC records in its statement of financial position the estimated
fair value of swaps as of the statement of financial position date. Changes in the fair value of the swaps
are included in the unrealized gains on interest rate swaps in the statement of activities and changes in
net assets.

Net assets — Net assets are classified and reported as follows:

Net assets without donor restrictions — Represent resources available to support MRCC’s operations and
donor-restricted resources that have become available for use by MRCC in accordance with the intention
of the donor.

Net assets with donor restrictions — Represent contributions that are limited in use by MRCC in
accordance with donor-imposed stipulations. These stipulations may expire with time or may be satisfied
by the actions of MRCC according to the intention of the donor. Upon satisfaction of such stipulations, the
associated net assets are released from net assets with donor restrictions and recognized as net assets
without donor restrictions. Net assets with donor restrictions are available primarily for building
renovations, resident assistance, certain aspects of operations, and food distribution to low income
seniors. Net assets with donor restrictions also represent net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations
that they be maintained by MRCC in perpetuity. See Note 8 for net assets with donor restrictions
maintained by MRCC in perpetuity at June 30, 2023.

Revenue recognition — MRCC has assessed the predominant component of monthly lease payments for
assisted living and memory care to be for the monthly rent of the apartment, as other services such as net
health services revenue and other resident services revenue are reported separately. MRCC therefore
recognizes monthly rent as lease income under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC") 840, Leases.
MRCC further determined that net health services revenue and other resident services revenue are
health care services and other services provided to residents that do not relate to the assisted living unit
apartment rent. Therefore, such service revenues are not part of the calculation of lease payments, and
revenue under these service lines is recognized under ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers ("ASC 606"). Accounts receivable recognized in accordance with ASC 606 at July 1, 2022 and
June 30, 2023, included in resident accounts receivable were $1,973,754 and $3,222,232, respectively.

Net health services revenues are reported at the amount that reflects the consideration MRCC expects to
receive in exchange for the personal care services provided. Performance obligations are determined
based on the nature of the services provided. Net health services revenues are recognized as
performance obligations are satisfied.

Net health services revenues are primarily comprised of the following revenue streams:

Skitled Nursing — Skilled nursing revenues are primarily derived from providing personal care services to
residents at a stated daily fees with the same timing and pattern of transfer and are a series of distinct
services that are considered one performance obligation, which is satisfied over time as services are
provided. Therefore, skilled nursing revenues are recognized on a daily basis.
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Assisted Living — Assisted living revenues are primarily derived from providing personal care services to
residents at a stated monthly fee with the same timing and pattern of transfer and are a series of distinct
services that are considered one performance obligation, which is satisfied over time as services are
provided. Therefore, assisted living revenues are recognized on a month-to-month basis.

Memory Care — Memory care revenues are primarily derived from providing personal care services to
residents at a stated monthly fee with the same timing and pattern of transfer and are a series of distinct
services that are considered one performance obligation, which is satisfied over time as services are
provided. Therefore, memory care revenues are recognized on a month-to-month basis.

Ancillary — Ancillary revenues are primarily derived from providing medication, physical and occupational
therapy, and medical supplies to skilled nursing residents. Ancillary revenue for net health services is
recognized as services are rendered.

Other resident services revenue includes revenues from housekeeping, laundry, transportation, personal
supplies, and other revenues from residents. MRCC has determined that other resident services revenue
is considered individual performance obligations, which are satisfied over time as services are provided.
Therefore, other resident services revenues are recognized as services are rendered.

MRCC disaggregates lease income and revenue from contracts with customers by type of service as this
depicts the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of its revenue and cash flows are affected by
economic factors. Revenues, gains, and other support consist of the following for the year ended June
30, 2023, as follows:

Assisted
Living/
Skilled Memory Care Ancillary Total
Monthly rent $ - $ 4,837,401 $ - $ 4,837,401
Net health services revenue 9,477,803 1,449,321 537,664 11,464,788
Other resident services revenue - - 155,374 165,374

$ 9,477,803 $ 6,286,722 $ 693,038 $ 16,457,563

Payment terms and conditions for MRCC's resident contracts vary by contract type, although terms
generally include payment to be made within 30 days. Monthly rental fees and net health services
revenue for assisted living and memory care are billed to residents monthly in advance and are amortized
ratably during the month. Net health services for skilled nursing and ancillary are billed in arears. Other
resident services revenue is generally billed monthly in arrears.

MRCC has agreements with the residents at established monthly rates.
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MRCC has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to MRCC at amounts different
from its established rates. Net health services revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable
amounts from residents, third-party payors, and others for services rendered and includes estimated
retroactive revenue adjustments. Retroactive adjustments are considered in the recognition of revenue on
an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered, and such estimated amounts are
revised in future periods, as adjustments become known. Payment arrangements include prospectively
determined rates per day, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, and per diem payments. Net revenues
from Medicare and Medi-Cal programs were $3,465,000 and $4,277,000, respectively, for the year ended
June 30, 2023. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medi-Cal programs are complex and
subject to interpretation and change. As a result, it is reasonably possible that recorded estimates could
change in the near term.

Charitable care — MRCC provides charitable care discounts to long-term residents who are no longer
able to pay the published rate for services or monthly service fees. The amount of charitable care
discounts is included in monthly rent. The total charitable care discounts included in releases from
restriction for the year ended June 30, 2023, was $51,765.

Contributions — Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are accrued at estimated fair
value at the date each promise is received. Gifts received with donor stipulations are reported in net
assets with donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified and
reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions. Conditional contributions are reported as
liabilities until the condition is eliminated, or the contributed assets are returned to the donor.

Contributions in-kind — MCRR recognizes in-kind contributions of food for its Brown Bag Program, that
provides food distribution to low income seniors. These food contributions are received from the Alameda
County Community Food Bank, which includes support from the United States Department of Agriculture
("USDA"), as well as other food banks, in support of MRCC’s Brown Bag Program, which provides food
distribution to low income seniors. Donated government food was valued at an average of $1.57 per
pound for USDA donated food and average of $1.93 per pound for all other donated food for the year
ended June 30, 2023. This valuation is based on an external study conducted for Feeding America.

(Deficiency) excess of revenues over expenses — MRCC considers the (deficiency) excess of
revenues over expenses in net assets without donor restrictions as the operating measure for the
organization. Changes in net assets without donor restrictions, which are excluded from (deficiency)
excess of revenues over expenses consistent with industry practice, include permanent transfers to and
from affiliates for other than goods and services.

Tax-exempt status — MRCC is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and has been granted tax-exempt status by the Internal Revenue Service and the
California Franchise Tax Board. However, MRCC is subject to federal income tax on any unrelated
business taxable income.

MRCC files tax returns in the U.S. federal and State of California jurisdictions.

Property taxes — MRCC has filed and received an exemption from certain property taxes in accordance
with Section 214 of the California Code.
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New accounting pronouncements — In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842) (“ASU No. 2016-02"), to increase transparency and comparability among organizations by
recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about
leasing arrangements. In June 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-05, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606) and Leases (Topic 842): Effective Dates for Certain Entities, which allows certain
entities the option to delay adoption of ASU No. 2016-02 to fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2021, which is the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, for MRCC. MRCC adopted ASU 2016,-as of July 1,
2022, and has been applied prospectively. The adoption did not have a material impact on the financial
statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326),
which requires the use of the current expected credit losses (“CECL") impairment model for a broad
scope of financial instruments, including financial assets measured at amortized cost (which includes
loans, held-to-maturity debt securities and trade receivables), net investments in leases, and certain off-
balance sheet credit exposures. The CECL model requires the immediate recognition of estimated
expected credit losses over the life of the financial instrument. ASU No. 2016-13 is effective for MRCC for
the year ending June 30, 2024. Management is currently evaluating the impact on the financial
statements.

Note 2 — Concentration of Credit Risk

MRCC grants credit without collateral to its patients and residents. The mix of receivables from patients,
residents, and third-party payors at June 30, 2023, was as follows:

Medicare 19%
Medi-Cal 49%
Other third-party payors 25%
Self pay 7%

100%

Financial instruments, which could potentially subject MRCC to significant concentrations of credit risk,
consist primarily of investments in marketable securities. MRCC, primarily through external money
managers, has significant investments in marketable securities, which are subject to price fluctuation.
This risk is controlled through a diversified portfolio and regular monitoring procedures.

Financial instruments potentially subjecting MRCC to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of
bank demand deposits in excess of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“‘FDIC”) and Securities
Investor Protection Corporation (“SIPC”) insurance thresholds. If any of the financial institutions with
whom MRCC does business were to be placed into receivership, MRCC may be unable to access the
cash on deposit with such institutions. Demand deposits are placed with a local financial institution, and
management has not experienced any loss related to these demand deposits in the past. At June 30,
2023, MRCC's cash accounts exceeded federally insured limits by $1,140,834.
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Note 3 — Investments and Investment Return

Composition of investments and assets limited as to use at June 30, 2023, was as follows:

Equities

Fixed income securities:
U.S. agencies and treasuries
Corporate debt securities
Mortgage-backed securities
Mutual funds

Money market mutual funds

$ 7,106,449

575,588
725,017
838,578
950,621

79,936

$ 10,276,189

Investments reflected in the statement of financial position at June 30, 2023, were as follows:

Investments
Assets limited as to use, restricted by donor (Note 8)

$ 6,610,269
3,665,920
$ 10,276,189

Total investment return for the year ended June 30, 2023, was comprised of the following:

Interest and dividend income and realized gains
Less: investment expenses

Unrealized gains

Note 4 — Property and Equipment, net

Property and equipment, net consist of the following at June 30, 2023:

Land and land improvements

Buildings, building improvements, and building service equipment
Office furniture and equipment

Vehicles

Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction in progress

$ 130,880

(102,700)

28,180

1,211,539
_$ 1239719

$ 2,961,348
40,372,130
4,030,523
630,188

47,994,189
(8,672,236)

814,218

$ 40,136,171
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At June 30, 2023, MRCC's construction in progress balance of $814,218 relates to certain building
renovations. The projects currently in progress are expected to be completed in the next fiscal year with
approximately $291,000 of additional costs to complete.

As described in Note 5, portions of the above property and equipment are pledged as collateral on
MRCC'’s notes payable. MRCC capitalizes interest expense until the related depreciable asset is placed
into service. Interest expense capitalized during the year ended June 30, 2023, was $64,180.

Note 5 — Construction Note Payable and Term Loan Payable

MRCC entered into a $25,000,000 construction financing with BBVA Compass Bank on March 26, 2019.
Such loan was used to finance construction payments through construction, with a planned conversion
upon construction completion. The conversion would result in a 10-year financing, with principal
payments based on a 30-year amortization and a 4.51% annual interest rate. MRCC's construction note
payable — current maturities of $140,744 at June 30, 2023 is comprised of principal payments made from
July 1, 2023 to October 26, 2023.

On October 27, 2023, MRCC entered into a $24,500,000 commercial term loan agreement ("Term Loan
Agreement") secured by real estate and an interest rate swap agreement (“Swap”) with California Bank &
Trust (“CalBT”), for the purpose of extinguishing the existing construction note payable in accordance with
ASC 470-50-40-10, which had expired on October 23, 2023. In addition, MRCC terminated the interest
rate swaps associated with the construction note payable for $3,451,725. MRCC used the proceeds of
these two transaction plus $1,129,374 of cash to pay off the existing construction note payable balance of
$24,469,659 plus associated interest expense of $119,571, fund a debt service reserve account totaling
$3,943,000, and pay $548,869 of debt issuance costs (See Note 18).

Unamortized debt issuance costs of $395,632 at June 30, 2023, which were incurred to secure the
construction financing will be recognized as a loss on extinguishment of debt in 2024.

MRCC's term loan payable consisted of the following at June 30, 2023:

Term loan payable $ 24,500,000
Less: current maturities (290,400)
Less: unamortized debt issuance costs (395,632)

Construction note payable, net $ 23,813,968
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Aggregate annual maturities of the term loan payable at June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Years Ending June 30,

2024 $ 290,400
2025 454,000
2026 482,400
2027 23,273,200

$ 24,500,000

Note 6 — Interest Rate Swaps

MRCC entered into three interest rate swap agreements with a commercial bank, its construction lender,
to manage interest rate exposure from its floating rate on the construction note payable. The differential to
be paid or received under these agreements is accrued consistent with the terms of the agreement and is
recognized in interest expense over the term of the related debt using a method that approximates the
effective interest method.

The estimated fair values of interest rate swaps have been determined using Level 2 inputs including
available marketing information and valuation methodologies. The fair values of interest rate swaps
include adjustments for market liquidity, counterparty credit quality, and other deal specific factors, where
appropriate. MRCC also incorporates, within its fair value measurements of over-the-counter derivatives,
the net credit differential between the counterparty credit risk and MRCC’s own credit risk. An estimate of
severity of loss is also used in the determination of fair value, primarily based on historical experience,
adjusted for recent specific expectations.

All interest rate swaps were entered into with BBVA Compass Bank, and assumed with the same terms
upon its acquisition by PNC Bank in 2021. PNC is the floating rate player subject to a floating rate,
whereas MRCC is the fixed rate player subject to a fixed rate. While the original swaps referenced the
floating rate of USD-LIBOR-BBA, upon the construction loan extension, the rate was amended to
reference USD-BSBY (Bloomberg Short-Term Bank Yield Index rate) as LIBOR is being phased out. All
swaps were executed with effective dates coinciding with the planned construction note payable
conversion of March 24, 2022.

The following chart outlines the terms and valuations of the swap arrangements:
Unrealized Gain

for the Year
Fair Value, Ended

Notional Value Interest Rate Date Executed Maturity Date June 30, 2023 June 30, 2023
2019 Swap $ 10,000,000 2.86% 3/26/2019 3/24/2032 $ 566,425 $ 579,368
2020 Swap $ 10,000,000 1.08% 5/1/2020 3/24/2032 1,758,802 382,666
2020 Swap #2 $ 2,000,000 1.20% 5/4/2020 3/24/2027 198,304 47,294
2020 Swap #2 $ (500,000) 1.20% 5/4/2020 3/24/2027 1,425 1,425
2020 Swap #2 $ (500,000) 1.20% 5/4/2020 3/24/2027 1,424 1,424
2020 Swap #2 $ (500,000) 1.20% 6/4/2020 3/24/2027 1,325 1,325
2020 Swap #2 $ (355,129) 1.20% 5/4/2020 3/24/2027 536 536

$ 2,528,241 $ 1,014,038
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Note that the 2020 Swap #2 includes options to terminate early, in $500,000 increments annually from
March 24, 2023 through 2025 and $355,219 in 2026. The value of the exit options is incorporated into the
swap valuation and the associated unrealized gain (loss).

At June 30, 2023, the fair value of the interest rate swaps was included in the statement of financial
position. The unrealized gain for the year ended June 30, 2023, was included in the accompanying
statement of activities and changes in net assets.

On October 27, 2023, MRCC terminated the interest rate swaps associated with the construction note
payable for $3,451,725 (See Note 18).
Note 7 — Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consisted of donor restricted contributions and grants at June 30, 2023,
for the following purposes:

Building renovations and equipment $ 585219
Charitable care and other 751,938
Food distribution to low income seniors 1,075,716
Endowment corpus 2,939,874

$ 5,352,747

During the year ended June 30, 2023, $3,124,437 of net assets were released from donor restrictions by
incurring eligible operating and capital expenditures and satisfying the restricted purposes of charitable
care.

Endowment corpus that must be maintained in perpetuity, with the earnings on such funds to be used
primarily for the care of indigent people, are included in charity and other.

MRCC’s management estimates the net assets with donor restrictions with donor imposed stipulations to
be satisfied by the actions of the during the year ended June 30, 2024, except for the charitable care
program.

Note 8 — Endowments

MRCC'’s endowment was established to support MRCC'’s nonprofit mission. The endowment consists of
donor-restricted endowment funds. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
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MRCC's governing body has interpreted the State of California Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (“SPMIFA”) as requiring preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of
the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this
interpretation, MRCC classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated
to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment,
and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion
of donor-restricted endowment funds is classified as net assets with donor restrictions that are available
for release until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by MRCC in a manner consistent with
the standard of prudence prescribed by SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMIFA, MRCC considers the
following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment
funds:

e Duration and preservation of the fund

e Purposes of MRCC and the fund

e General economic conditions

e Possible effect of inflation and deflation

e Expected total return from investment income and appreciation or depreciation of investments
e Other resources of MRCC

¢ Investment policies of MRCC

The composition of net assets for the endowment fund at June 30, 2023, was as follows:

Available for
Release Corpus Total
Donor-restricted endowment funds $ 726,046 $ 2,939,874 $ 3,665,920

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2023, were as follows:

Available for
Release Corpus Total
Endowment net assets, beginning of year $ 312,673 $ 2,939,874 $ 3,252,547
Investment return, net:
Investment gain 463,406 - 463,406
Net appreciation 34,256 - 34,256
Less: investment manager expense (32,525) - (32,525)
Total investment return 465,137 - 465,137
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure (51,764) - (51,764)
Endowment net assets, end of year $ 726,046 $ 2,939,874 $ 3,665,920
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From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level MRCC is required to retain as a fund of perpetual duration pursuant to donor
stipulation or SPMIFA. There were no such deficiencies of this nature at June 30, 2023.

MRCC has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of funding to programs and other items supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment. Endowment assets include the assets of donor-
restricted endowment funds MRCC must hold in perpetuity or for donor-specified periods. MRCC expects
its endowment funds to provide an average annual rate of return exceeding consumer price index (“CPI")
by 3.5% over time. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

To satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives, MRCC relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both current yield (investment income such as dividends and
interest) and capital appreciation (both realized and unrealized). MRCC targets a diversified asset
allocation that places a greater emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return
objectives within prudent risk constraints.

MRCC has a policy of appropriating each year for expenditures an amount expected to be required to
offset the amount of resident assistance estimated to be provided as approved in the annual budget. In
establishing this policy, MRCC considered the long-term expected return on its endowment. This is
consistent with MRCC’s objective to maintain the purchasing power of endowment assets held in
perpetuity, as well as to provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return.

Note 9 - Liquidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their
use within one year of June 30, 2023, comprise the following:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,548,834
Patient and resident accounts receivable, net 3,275,360
Investments 6,610,269

$ 11,434,463

None of the financial assets are subject to donor or other contractual restrictions that make them
unavailable for general expenditure within one year of the balance sheet date. MRCC has a goal to
maintain a current ratio greater than 1:1 in order to meet general expenditures, liabilities, and other
obligations as they come due.
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Note 10 — Functional Expenses

The expenses for providing residential and assisted living services activities of MRCC that can be directly
identified with a specific function are allocated directly to that function. Expenses that cannot be directly
identified with a specific function are allocated among program services and supporting services activities
benefited based upon employee time and effort recorded on functions related to the specific activity, or in
the case of shared expenses, using an allocation based on personnel costs, space usage, or other
relevant bases. Expenses related to providing these services for the year ended June 30, 2023, were as
follows: ‘

Skilled Assisted Living/ Brown Bag General and

Nursing Memory Care Program Fundraising Administrative Total
Salaries and benefits $ 5,261,774 $§ 4355713 $ 599,713 $ 10,643 $ 108,533 $ 10,336,376
Purchased services and other 3,106,058 2,800,454 119,641 121,514 747,129 6,894,796
Donated food - 4,437,917 - - 4,437,117
Supplies 871,032 665,112 298,854 47 - 1,835,045
Depreciation and depletion 707,835 1,283,702 - - 1,991,637
Interest and fees - - - - 933,358 933,358
Management fee - - - - 1,330,561 1,330,561
Other expenses - - - - 50,979 50,979

$ 9,946,699 $ 9,104,981 $ 5,456,125 $ 132,204 $ 3,170,560 $ 27,810,569

Note 11 — Professional Liability, Workers Compensation Claims, and Health Reimbursement
Arrangement Liability Claims

Professional liability claims — MRCC purchases professional liability insurance under a claims-made
policy on a fixed premium basis. U.S. GAAP requires a health care provider to accrue professional liability
costs, if any, for any reported and unreported incidents of potential improper professional service
occurring during the year by estimating the probable ultimate costs of the incidents. Based upon MRCC'’s
claim experience, no such accrual is required. It is reasonably possible that this estimate could change
materially in the near term.

Workers’ compensation claims — MRCC purchases workers' compensation insurance coverage with a
zero deductible per occurrence. The provision for estimated workers’ compensation claims includes
estimates of the ultimate costs for both uninsured reported claims and claims incurred-but-not-reported, in
accordance with projections based on past experience. Workers’ compensation liabilities, included in
accrued expenses and other current liabilities, were $170,898 as of June 30, 2023, in the accompanying
statement of financial position. Insurance recovery receivables, included in other assets, were $170,898
as of June 30, 2023, in the accompanying statement of financial position.

Health reimbursement arrangement — MRCC purchases a high deductible health and dental insurance
plan for MRCC employees on a calendar year basis. MRCC had a commitment to fund $5,500 which was
decreased to $4,500 on January 1, 2023, per employee to a health savings account. MRCC estimates the
remaining utilization of the health reimbursement arrangement based on historical experience of claims
paid from the MRCC employee’s health savings account. The remaining estimated health reimbursement
accrued expense is included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the accompanying
statement of financial position was $35,372 as of June 30, 2023.
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Note 12 — Retirement Plans

MRCC participates in a defined contribution plan and incentive plan that covers all employees.

Employees are eligible for participation in the defined contribution plan at date of hire and MRCC matches
the employee contribution, after the completion of one year of service, up to a maximum of 5.0% of the
employee’s salary, with vesting over four years. In addition, employees are eligible for the incentive plan
where MRCC contributes a discretionary amount of the employee’s salary after completion of one year of
service. During the year ended June 30, 2023, MRCC contributed a total of $123,179 and zero, to the
defined contribution and incentive plans, respectively.

Note 13 — Management Company

In July 1, 2011, MRCC entered into a management agreement with ECA-Corporate for various
management, consulting and marketing services. MRCC reimburses ECA-Corporate for all reasonable
out-of-pocket expenses, a management fee of 7.5% of gross revenues generated by the property. The
management agreement expires on July 1, 2031. Management fee expense was $1,330,561 for the year
ended June 30, 2023.

Management fees are subordinate to the term loan payable as of October 27, 2023 (See Note 18).

Note 14 — Related Party Transactions

MRCC entered into a note payable in the amount of $2,000,000 with ECA-Corporate in December 2021,
by converting $2,000,000 reported as due to related party, to support financing the equity commitment for
the construction loan. The note bears interest monthly at 2.5%. Principal and interest are payable
annually over four years, commencing on July 15, 2022, unless doing so would violate the construction
note payable terms. The balance of the note payable at June 30, 2023, was $1,500,000. Accrued interest
of $37,500 as of June 30, 2023, is included in due to related party. Interest expense on the related party
note payable for the year ended June 30, 2023, was $37,500.

The related party note payable is subordinate to the term note payable as of October 27, 2023 (See Note
18).

MRCC has a payable to ECA-Corporate at June 30, 2023. The amounts due are for management fees
and other shared administrative expenses. See Note 13 for discussion of management fee expense. The
amounts due to related party as of June 30, 2023, was $271,986.

Related party management fees and other shared administrative expenses $ 234,486
Accrued interest from note payable 37,500
$ 271,986

In May 2022, MRCC entered into an agreement with Elder Care Alliance of San Francisco (AVSF) for
consulting services. AVSF is a related party as another subordinate company to ECA-Corporate. The
agreement expired on June 30, 2022, and is renewable on a monthly basis. Consulting fee expense for
the year ended June 30, 2023, was $52,901.
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Note 15 — Continuing Care Reserve Requirement

The State of California and Safety Code (the “Code”) requires continuing care retirement communities to
report on the adequacy of certain reserve requirements. MRCC met both the statutory and liquid reserve
requirements at June 30, 2023, and was exempt from the refund reserve requirement at June 30, 2023.

In accordance with section 1790(a)(3) of the Code as of June 30, 2023, the amounts accumulated for
projects designated to meet the needs of the MRCC residents are accumulated in construction in
progress (Note 4), and there are no amounts maintained for contingencies.

Note 16 — Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements must
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There is a hierarchy
of three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity and are significant to the fair
value of the assets or liabilities.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying statement of financial position, as well as
the general classification of such assets pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. There have been no
significant changes in the valuation techniques during the year ended June 30, 2023.

Investments — Where quoted prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within
Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated
by using quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or independent asset pricing services and
pricing models, the inputs of which are market-based or independently sourced market parameters,
including, but not limited to, yield curves, interest rates, volatilities, prepayments, defaults, cumulative loss
projections, and cash flows. Such securities are classified in Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. In certain
cases where Levels 1 or 2 inputs are not available, securities are classified within Level 3 of the
hierarchy. MRCC does not hold securities classified as Level 3.

Interest rate swap agreements — The fair value is estimated by a third party using inputs that are
observable or that can be corroborated by observable market data and, therefore, are classified within
Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy.
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The following tables present the fair value measurements of certain assets recognized in the
accompanying statement of financial position measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level
within the fair value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at June 30, 2023:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Equities $ 7,106,449 $ 7,106,449 $ - $ -
Fixed income securities:

U.S. agencies and treasuries 575,588 575,588 - -

Corporate debt securities 725,017 - 725,017 -

Mortgage-backed securities 838,578 838,578 - -

Mutual funds 950,621 950,621 - -

Money market mutual funds 79,936 79,936 - -

$ 10,276,189 $ 9,551,172 $ 725,017 $ -

Interest rate swaps $ 2,528,241 $ - $ 2,528,241 $ -

Note 17 — Significant Estimates, Concentrations, and Contingencies

U.S. GAAP requires disclosure of certain significant estimates and current vulnerabilities due to certain
concentrations and contingencies. Those matters include the following:

Compliance — The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and
local governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such
as licensure, accreditations, and government health care program participation requirements;
reimbursement for patient services; and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse. Government activity
continues with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse
statutes and regulations by health care providers. Violations of these laws and regulations could result in
expulsion from government health care programs, together with the imposition of significant fines and
penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed. Management believes
that MRCC is in compliance with fraud, abuse, and other applicable government laws and regulations.
While no regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject
to future government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions known or unasserted at this
time.

Litigation — In the normal course of business, MRCC is, from time to time, subject to allegations that may
or may not result in litigation. MRCC evaluates such allegations by conducting investigations to determine
the validity of each potential claim. Based upon the advice of counsel, management records an estimate
of the amount of ultimate expected loss, if any, for each of these matters. Events could occur that would
cause the estimate of ultimate loss to differ materially in the near term.

Implicit and explicit price concessions for net health services revenue — Implicit and explicit price
concessions included in net health services revenue are described in Note 1.
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Current economic conditions — Due to the current regulatory environment and economic uncertainties,
it is possible the values of assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements could change rapidly,
resulting in material future adjustments.

Investments — MRCC invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to
various risks such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities
will occur in the near term and that such change could materially affect the amounts reported in the
accompanying statement of financial position.

Interest rate swaps — MRCC invests in various interest rate swaps. Interest rate swaps are exposed to
various risks such as interest rate and market risks. Due to the level of risk associated with interest rate
swaps, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of interest rate swaps will occur in the
near term and that such change could materially affect the amounts reported in the accompanying
statement of financial position.

Note 18 — Subsequent Events

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial position date but
before financial statements are available to be issued. MRCC recognizes in the financial statements the
effects of all subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date
of the statement of financial position, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the
financial statements. MRCC's financial statements do not recognize subsequent events that provide
evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the statement of financial position but arose
after the statement of financial position date and before financial statements were available to be issued.

On August 7, 2023, ECA-Corporate announced that they are affiliating with Transforming Age and that
ECA-Corporate and their communities will be joining the Transforming Age network. By combining their
expertise, together the two organizations aim to strengthen and grow their mission impact and better
address the evolving needs of older adults, across the economic spectrum. The legal structure of MRCC
is not changing, ECA-Corporate remains the sole corporate member of MRCC. The affiliation is pending
California Attorney General approval.

Transforming Age is one of the nation’s largest nonprofit senior living providers, serving more than
100,000 older adults by integrating housing, community services, technology, philanthropy, and
partnerships. Transforming Age is recognized for its robust nonprofit mission, commitment to creating a
culture of excellence, and diverse network of affiliates that serve older adults across the economic
spectrum.

Under this new affiliation, both organizations will leverage their combined strengths to broaden their
service offerings, providing older adults with an expanded array of programs, innovative care options, and
sustainable housing solutions.
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On October 27, 2023, MRCC entered into a $24,500,000 Term Loan agreement secured by real estate
with CalBT for the purpose of refinancing the existing construction note payable which had expired on
October 23, 2023. In addition, MRCC terminated the interest rate swaps associated with the construction
note payable for $3,451,725 (See Note 5 and Note 6). MRCC also transferred $1,129,374 to CalBT prior
to finalizing the commercial term loan agreement.

Total proceeds of $29,081,099 from the three transactions above were used as follows:

e $24,469,659 to pay off the existing construction note payable,
e $3,943,000 to be held in a pledged bank account with CalBT, and
e $548,869 to pay debt issuance costs.

The CalBT loan agreement requires principal plus interest payments based on a 25-year amortization and
a floating interest rate equal to 79.00% of the all-in rate which is equal to 30-day term Secured Overnight
Financing Rate plus a spread of 2.92%. The floating interest rate has been hedged via the Swap to
provide a fixed rate of 6.20% to MRCC. The underlying notional amount of the Swap is $24,500,000 as
of the October 27, 2023 effective date. The term loan provides a 42-month commitment with a 24-month
extension option based on certain metrics being met.

Management fees and the note payable to ECA-Corporate are subordinate to the CalBT loan.

The $548,869 of debt issuance costs associated with the term loan payable will be amortized to interest
expense over the 42-month commitment period.

MRCC made principal payments on the construction note payable of $140,744 from July 1, 2023 to
October 6, 2023. The $395,632 of unamortized debt issuance costs as of June 30, 2023, associated with
the construction note payable will be written off as of October 27, 2023.

MRCC has evaluated subsequent events through November 27, 2023, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Federal Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/Pass- Assistance Entity Passed
Through Grantor/Program Listing Identifying Through to Total Federal
or Cluster Title Award Period Number Number Subrecipif penditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Pass-through awards from:
Alameda County Area Agency on Aging:
ppl 1 Nutrition Assi Program (SNAP) Cluster
COVID-19: Families First (FFCRA) and Supplemental Nutrition
Assistance Program (SNAP) 7/1/2022 - 6/30/2023 10.561 N/A $ $ 47,000
COVID-19: American Rescue Plan ACT (ARPA) 71112022 - 6/30/2023 10.561 NIA 37,952
Total SNAP Cluster 84,952
Food Distribution Cluster
The Emergency Food Assistance Pragram (TEFAP) 7/1/2022 - 6/30/2023 10.569 N/A 466,257
Total Food Distribution Cluster 466,257
Pass-through programs subtotal 551,209
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 551,209
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
COVID-18: Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan
{ARP) Rural Distribution 1/1/2020 - 6/30/2023 93.498 N/A 151,495
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 151,495
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
Emergency Food and Shelter National Board Program (EFSP) 7/1/2022 - 6/30/2023 97.024 N/A 40,000
COVID-19: Emergency Food and Shelter Program - Phase ARPA-R 7/1/2022 - 6/30/2023 97.024 N/A 75,000
Emergency Food and Shelter Program - Phase 40 7/1/2022 - 6/30/2023 97.024 N/A 20,000
135,000
Disaster Grants - Public Assist (Presidentially Declared Di: s) 711/2022 - 6/30/2023 97.036 N/A 138,781
Total U.S. Dep t of H fand Security 274,781
Total Federal Expenditures $ $ 977,485

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Basis of presentation — The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”)
includes the federal award activity of Mercy Retirement and Care Center (“MRCC") under a program of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Mercy Retirement and Care Center, it is not intended to and
does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of Mercy Retirement and Care Center.

In accordance with guidance from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (‘DHHS”), MRCC included
the Reporting Period 5 expenditures for Provider Relief Fund and American Rescue Plan Rural Distribution
Federal Assistance Listing No. 93.498 of $151,495 in the Schedule for the year ended June 30, 2023, to align
with DHHS reporting guidelines. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the total amount of $151,495 of Provider Relief
Fund assistance received by MRCC was recognized as revenue during the year ended June 30, 2022, and is
included in beginning net assets as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Summary of significant accounting policies — Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the
accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the
Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Indirect costs — MRCC has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

Subrecipient awards — MRCC did not provide any federal awards to subrecipients during the year ended June
30, 2023.
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MOSSADAMS

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
Mercy Retirement and Care Center

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Mercy
Retirement and Care Center (‘MRCC”) which comprise the statement of financial position as of

June 30, 2023, and the related statements of activities, and changes in net assets, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated November 27, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Mercy Retirement
and Care Center’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Mercy Retirement and Care Center's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of Mercy Retirement and Care Center’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal contro! that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Mercy Retirement and Care Center's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

M%, f-iumf@ e

San Francisco, California
November 27, 2023
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MOSSADAMS

Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance for the Major
Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

The Board of Directors
Mercy Retirement and Care Center

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program
Qualified Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We have audited Mercy Retirement and Care Center (“MRCC”)’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on MRCC's major federal program for the year ended June 30,
2023. MRCC's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Qualified Opinion on The Emergency Food Assistance Program - Food Distribution Cluster - Assistance
Listing Number 10.569

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of
our report, MRCC complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on The Emergency Food Assistance Program -
Food Distribution Cluster - Assistance Listing Number 10.569 for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government
Auditing Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of MRCC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for the major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of
MRCC'’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Matter Giving Rise to Qualified Opinion on The Emergency Food Assistance Program - Food Distribution
Cluster - Assistance Listing Number 10.569

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, MRCC did not comply
with requirements regarding The Emergency Food Assistance Program - Food Distribution Cluster -
Assistance Listing Number 10.569 as described in finding number 2023-002 for Special Test and
Provisions.
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Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for MRCC to comply with the
requirements applicable to that program.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control.over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements
applicable to MRCC’s federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on MRCC's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of
the report on compliance about MRCC's compliance with the requirements of each major federal
program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding MRCC's compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

« Obtain an understanding of MRCC's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of MRCC's internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed other instance of noncompliance which are required
to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2023-001.
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Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on MRCC's
response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. MRCC's response was not subjected to the other auditing
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we did identify certain
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2023-001 and 2023-002 to be material
weaknesses.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We did not identify any
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on MRCC's
response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. MRCC's response was not subjected to
the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

|

San Francisco, California
November 27, 2023
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the
financial statement audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? [(Oyes X No

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified? [Jyes X None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? (Oyes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified? DMYes [J No

e Significant deficiency(ies) identified? [Jyes X None reported
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? MXYes [ No

Identification of Major Federal Programs and Type of Auditor’s Report Issued on Compliance for Major
Federal Programs:

Type of Auditor’s
Report Issued on-
Compliance.for
Federal Assistance Major Federal
Listing Numbers Name of Major Federal Program or Cluster * Programs
10.569 The Emergency Food Assistance Program (TEFAP) — Qualified
Food Distribution Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $__ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? [Jyes X No

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding 2023-001: Special Tests and Provisions - Material Weakness in Internal Control Over Compliance
and Instance of Noncompliance

Federal Program: The Emergency Food Assistance Program (TEFAP) (Assistance Listing #10.569)
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Award Year: 2022-2023

Criteria: Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an effective control over compliance. A
strong internal control system ensures that compliance requirements are met.
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Condition: Management is required to maintain an appropriate accounting for USDA Foods, provide an annual
physical inventory and reconcile the inventory annually. During audit inquiries, management disclosed there is not
an inventory management system in place until February 2023. During our audit procedures over food receipts,
management was unable to provide receipt requisition forms for the first 4 of 40 samples selected. We stopped
testing on remaining food receipts samples selected. During our audit procedures we noted that in addition to
food recipients picking up food at MRCC's distribution site that MRCC delivers food to various locations with
eligible food recipients. Management was unable to provide distribution supports for the first 4 of 40 distributions
sampled. We stopped testing on remaining distribution samples selected.

Cause: Management did not have a food inventory system to record food receipt requisitions and food
distributions for the entire year. Management does not perform reconciliation of changes in inventory using food
receipt requisitions and food distributions.

Effect: Failure to maintain a food inventory system to monitor and record food inventory in accounting records
could allow for misappropriation of food inventory to occur.

Context: Management does not have internal controls over inventory management as required by TEFAP.
Questioned costs: $0
Repeat Finding: 2022-001

Recommendation: We recommend management to implement an inventory management system and establish
oversight controls to ensure compliance requirements are met.

Views of responsible officials: The impact of COVID on the Mercy Brown Bag program's execution and associated
inventory documentation was significant. It necessitated the restructuring of historical food distribution practices
with recipients and the increase in food provided through the TEFAP program. Priority was given to distributing
food to recipients, despite limited staffing caused by the increased operational workload and social distancing
requirements.

Starting in FY23, the program management initiated semi-annual inventory counts, which will continue into FY24
and beyond. Additionally, an Inventory Management System was implemented at the end of FY23 and will be
used throughout FY24, starting on July 1, 2023.

Finding 2023-002: Special Tests and Provisions - Material Weakness in Internal Control Over Compliance
and Material Noncompliance for Eligibility

Federal Program: The Emergency Food Assistance Program (TEFAP) (Assistance Listing #10.569)
Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Award Year: 2022-2023

Criteria: Management is responsible for establishing and maintain an effective control over compliance. A strong
internal control system ensures that compliance requirements are met.

Condition: During audit procedures we noted the total number of food recipients during the reporting period July 1,
2022 to June 30, 2023 was 63,060, which was vouched to the Link2Feed website database. Management also
tracks a separate spreadsheet the number of bags of food delivered to offsite locations where food recipients pick
up a bag of food, which totaled 129,150, which is a difference of 66,090 food recipients not being tracked within
the Link2Feed website.

Cause: Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, deliveries were being made via delivery services and directly to offsite
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2023

locations with populations of food recipients that were not being tracked via Link2Feed by manual entry by
management.

Effect: Failure to track recipients that received food distributions from the program is not compliant with the
TEFAP program and could cause ineligible food recipients to receive support from this program.

Context: Management did not implement effective internal controls over distributions of USDA Foods to food
recipients within the required method via the Link2Food website.

Questioned costs: $0
Repeat Finding: 2022-002

Recommendation: We recommend management to establish oversight controls to ensure compliance
requirements are met.

Views of responsible officials: Given the change in distribution approach, the large number of partner sites, and
partner site employee turnover, it was challenging to enforce compliance with the use of the Link2Feed website
by food recipients. In addition to strides made in FY23 towards correcting the documentation of recipients in
Link2Feed, Brown Bag has continued to address it in FY24 by performing the following:

1) Build communication and relationships with the remaining sites still not documenting (16
of our current 77)

2) lIssued emails and phone calls asking sites to update their records.
3) Making appointments and visiting all sites still not in compliance to make an in-person plea to comply.

4) As of November 1, issue written communications warning any remaining sites that food
deliveries will cease at the end of the year for any remaining sites not in compliance. No exceptions.
Participants will be invited to go to the closest open MBBP site in their area.

5) Management is actively trying to close the loop on the remaining MOU's, including SAHA, which remains
unsigned. Deliveries will cease to any sites not covered with an MOU at the end of the calendar year. No
exceptions.
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2023

@ Mercy Retirement
& CARE CENTER

Ak Core Alfance Commungy

Finding Number 2022-001
Internal Controls over inventory management (Material Weakness

Observationfimpact

Management is respensible to maintain an appropriate accounting for USDA Foods, provide an
annual physical inventory and reconcile the inventory annually.

Criteria

Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.511 requires the auditee to follow-up and provide comective action
on all audit findings as defined by the audit findings follow-up process under CFR 200.511.

In Q1 of FY23, it was noted by the auditors that there was no formal inventory management
system in place. Historically there has been very limited inventory on hand at any given time.
Additionally, management does not perform an inventory count or reconciliation of changes in
inventory using food receipt requisitions and food distributions.

Cause

The impact of COVID on the Mercy Brown Bag program's execution and associated inventory
documentation was significant. it necessitated the restructuring of historical food distribution
practices with recipients and the increase in food provided through the TEFAP program. Priority
was given to distributing food to recipients, despite limited staffing caused by the increased
operational workload and social distancing requirements.

Status
Mercy Brown Bag leamed of the potential need for an inventory management system and
inventory tracking after the audit was completed in Q1 of FY23, foo late for a beginning fiscal year
inventory. During FY23, however, management did perform the following:
December, 2022

s Developed an audit plan/sirategy for Brown Bag 2023
January, 2023

Developed physical inventory strategy/process

Performed first inventory count on 1/30/23 documenting Mercy warehouse,
Chapman warehouse and Grocery.

ElderCareflliance.org | Engaging Hearts - Transforming Lives - Erasing Boundaries
Foothill Bhwi Oakland CA B40G1 H10-534 BE40
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2023

February, 2023

» Met with Alameda County Community Food Bank to discuss Inventory Management
best practices

March, 2023

s Investigated other inventory management systems. Spoke to Boston Brown Bag,
Lawrence KS Brown Bag, and Dig Deep Farms in San Leandro.
+ Began research into scalesfweighing mechanisms.

April, 2023

Began Group meeting: IT/Finance/Brown Bag on inventory management
Met with Alameda County Food Bank, who helped with Dir of Supply Chain and
Operations experfise. Showed us their inventory management processfoperation in
action

» Met and negotiated contract terms with Link2Feed for inventory management system

May, 2023

s Food Bank Operations personnel met with Brown Bag Operations to plan pilot for
Inventory Management (workflow modeling)
» Project plan developed to implement Inventory Management software

June, 2023
» Signed confract with Link2Feed; Received Link2Feed Inventory Management
software

+« Performed a year-end inventory count documenting Mercy warehouse, Chapman
warehouse and Grocery.

July, 2023
s Implemented Link2Feed Inventory Management as of 7/1/23 to include the full FY24.
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Finding Number 2022.002
Internal controls over distributions of USDA Foods to recipients (Material Weakness)

Observationfimpact

Management did not implement effective intemal controls over distributions of USDA Foods to
food recipients within the required method via the Link2Food website.

Criteria

Uniform Guidance 2 GFR 200511 requires the auditee to follow-up and provide comective action
on all audit findings as defined by the audit findings follow-up process under CFR 200.511.

During the FY 2023 audit, it was noted by the auditors that the total number of food recipients
during the reporiing period July 1, 2022 fo June 30, 2023 was 63,060, which was vouched to the
Link2Feed website database. Management also tracks, using a separate spreadsheet, the
number of food bags delivered to offsite locations where food recipients pick up a food bag. That
spreadsheet totaled 129,150, which is a difference of 66,090 food recipients not being tracked
within the Link2Feed website.

Cause

Given the change in distribution approach, the large number of partner sites, and pariner site
employee tumover, it was challenging to enforce compliance with the use of the Link2Feed
website by food recipients.

Status

Mercy Brown Bag leamed of the issues with pariner compliance in the Link2Feed System after
the prior year audit was completed in Q1 of FY23. During FY23, management performed the
following-

November, 2022

« Began training {or re-training) 69 partner sites using Link2Feed-Brown Bag recipient
tracking / case management software

s Received new Alameda County Area Agency on Aging contract for 2023 contract
year. Detailed list of 44 tasks we needed to comply with that contract-assigned to
team members

» The Brown Bag Management met to discuss how we could approach; requested
2022 results

December, 2022
» Continued 69 site trainings of Link2Feed software

+ Developed Audit Plar/strategy for Brown Bag 2023 shared with BB team, ECA and
Mercy Leadership
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2023

January, 2023

« Completed on-site training of 69 partner sites; got final sites set up with hot spots

+ Developed and distnbuted MOU's for 34 different organizations {(some multi-site}
articulating their responsibility o track Brown Bag recipients

« Developed, agreed upon, implemented Share File structure for all BB Audit Files

Febniary, 2023

s Worked to make sure 1) sites were tracking recipients 2} partner contracts were
submitted and executed

« Developed multiple new forms including Proof of Delivery, Waste Log, order form (for
phone orders)

March, 2023

« Circled back with sites that were not tracking; having trouble. Re-frained multiple
sites.

+ Drivers/Operations personnel began consistently documenting ordering, distribution
of food, tracking of Proof of Delivery, gefting signatures, scanning and storing in
Commeon Files

April, 2023
« Developed proof of delivery forms, scanned in and saved in files along with Bills of
Lading; updated monthly Pivot forder report and site report
May, 2023

+ Negofiated new Link2Feed Case Management contract for tracking recipients
June, 2023

« Continued work to idenfify holes in tracking of recipients; training of new coondinators
at partner sites; working to round up final MOU's that were stuck with some City
Legal teams

« Reached out to pariner locations still not fully cooperating; informed them of MOU
language that tracking must be priortized to confinue services
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Corrective Action Plan
Year Ended June 30, 2023

@ Mercy Retirement
& CARE'CENTER

gy Bk Cory AL Cophtisiey

November 27, 2023

Moss Adams LLP
101 Sevond Strest, 8* Floor
8an Francisco. CA 84105

As required by Title 2 1.8, Code of Federal Regutations (CFR} Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards

{Uniform Guidance) we have provided below olir response and coractive action plan
asddressing the finding noted in the Single Audit repoerting package for Mercy Retirement and
Care Center ("MRCC") for the year ended June 30, 2023

11180

Finding Number 2023-001

nlerns

Response and Corrective Action Plan: The impact of COVID on the Mercy Brown Bag
program's exetution and associated inventory docurnentation was significant. It necessitated
the restructuring of historical food distribution practices with recipients and the incresse in food
provided through the TEFAP program, Pricrily was givern to disiribuling food 1o recipients,
despite limited stafling caused by the increased operationa! workload end socisl distancing
requirements,

Starting in FY23, the program management inifiated sem-annual inventory counts, which will
continue into FY24 and beyond. Additionally, an Inventory Managsment System was
implemented at the end of FY23 and will be used throughout FY24, starting on July 1, 2023.

Responsible Person: Janice Roberts, Program Directer, under the oversight of the Mercy
Executiva Diractor.

Estimated Completion Date; July 1, 2023
ElderCarehitiance.org | Engaging Hearts - Tratalorming Laes - Erasing Boundsries

3421 Fuathl Fivd Oaldere. TA 54411
53082 5BbAT
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Corrective Action Plan (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Mmiing um« 2023-002

Rasponse and Corrective Action Plan: In addition to srides made in FY23 fowards comecting
the documentation of recipients in Link2Feed, Brown Bag has continued 1o address it in FY24
by perfarming the ollowing-

1} Bulld communication and relationships with the remaining sites stilt not documenting (16
of our current 77)

2) Issued emails and phone cafls asking sftes to update their records,

3) :}::ing appointments and visiting all sites still not in compliance fo make an in-person

1o comply.

4) Asof Nmmher 1, issue wrillen commuinications warning any remalning sites that food
detiveries will cease at the end of tha yaar for any remaining sites nol in compliance. No
exceptions. Particlpants will be invited 1o go fo the diosest apen MBBP site in thelr ares.

5) Management ks actively trying to close the lonp on the remaining MOU's, Including
BAHA, which remains tmsigned. Delivesies will cease to any sites not covered with an
MOU st the end of the calendar year. No exceptions.

Responsible Person. Janice Roberis, Program Director, undar the oversight of the Marcy
Exscutive Direclor.

Estimated Completion Date December 31, 2023

Sincerely,

k'v 1 f‘*”’) T/\-v-;r\/\

Bing Isanberg
Chief Financial Officer
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MOSSADAMS

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors
Mercy Retirement and Care Center

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Mercy Retirement and Care Center ("MRCC"), which
comprise the continuing care liquid reserve schedule, Form 5-1 though Form 5-5, for the year ended
June 30, 2023.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
continuing care reserve of Mercy Retirement and Care Center as of June 30, 2023, in conformity with
the liquid reserve requirements of California Health and Safety Code Section 1792.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of MRCC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to the basis of accounting used to prepare the financial statements. The financial
statements are prepared by MRCC on the basis of the liquid reserve requirements of California Health
and Safety Code Section 1792, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, to meet the requirements of California Health and
Safety Code Section 1792. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the liquid reserve requirements of California Health and Safety Code Section 1792,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may include collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures .in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of MRCC's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about MRCC's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.




Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements, as a whole.
The accompanying supplementary schedules of Attachment to Form 5-1 and 5-2, Attachment to Form
5-4, and Attachment to Form 5-5, are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of financial statements, and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements, or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements, taken as a
whole.

Restriction on Use

Our report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of
Mercy Retirement and Care Center and the California Department of Social Services, and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

%7}6{%44@»&9

San Francisco, California
November 30, 2023
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Form 5-5, Annual Reserve Certification

——

FORM 55
ANNUAL RESBERVE CERTIFICATION
Brovider Name Mercy Retiement and Core Center along TormCoro Communly |
Fiscal Yoear Ended: 63072023
We have roviewed our debl senvics reservs and operst "
the penad ended BEoRogs and are I complisnce with those requirem

are s fotows:

|1} Dubt Service Reserve Amount
12] Opersting Expense Reserve Amount
3] Total Ligult Reserve Amount;

{Quaifying sssats sufficient s L2l the above fequircments are hald as follows:

Qur liguid reserve raquinements, comiputed using the atidited Mnancial stalements for the flsce! yerr

Amoynt
— $2783308
S 1))
[ _seeerers

Signatue:

Poor Toahy

{Authorized Representativé) Bing Isenberg

.t s v

‘Chief Fnanciat Officer

Amount
(Markat Vaiue ot End of Quarter)
Debi Opersting
Cusiifving Aswet Sarvice Resarve Roserve
] Cash and Cash Equivalens %0 $702.498
{5] investmeni Securiias §1763326 2 S4506043
6] Equity Socuties .50 $0
7 Urused/Avasiobie Lines of Credd 50 N ')
Bl JnusedsAvaiable Latiess of Cred e e 30 $0
19) Debi Service Reserve 80 {nol applicable)
[10] Cther: $0 . 50
Gesciboquiyrgesss)
“Totat Amount of Qualifying Asaets
Listed for Feserve Obdigation: [11} $1.783,326 [12) $5,520 441
Reserve Obligation Amount:  [13] L 31783320 (4] 3914549
Surplus/(Daficlancy): {18 $0 116 $4634.802

Data. i"/%i’/z‘?f-

{Titlo)

See accompanying notes.




Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Notes to Continuing Care Liquid Reserve Schedules

NOTE 1 — BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying continuing care liquid reserve reports have been prepared in accordance with the provisions
of Health and Safety Code Section 1792 administered by the State of California Department of Social Services,
and are not intended to be a complete presentation of Mercy Retirement and Care Center's assets, liabilities,
revenues, and expenses.

NOTE 2 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Mercy Retirement and Care Center (‘MRCC") entered into a $25,000,000 construction financing with BBVA
Compass Bank on March 26, 2019. Such loan was used to finance construction payments through construction,
with a planned conversion upon construction completion. The conversion would result in a 10-year financing, with
principal payments based on a 30-year amortization and a 4.51% annual interest rate.

On October 27, 2023, MRCC entered into a $24,500,000 commercial term loan agreement ("Term Loan
Agreement") secured by real estate and an interest rate swap agreement (“Swap”) with California Bank & Trust
(“CalBT"), for the purpose of extinguishing the existing construction note payable in accordance with ASC 470-50-
40-10, Debt-Modifications and Extinguishments-Derecognition, which had expired on October 23, 2023. In
addition, MRCC terminated the interest rate swaps associated with the construction note payable for $3,451,725.
MRCC used the proceeds of these two transaction plus $1,129,374 of cash to pay off the existing construction
note payable balance of $24,469,659 plus associated interest expense of $119,571, fund a debt service reserve
account totaling $3,943,000, and pay $548,869 of debt issuance costs (See Note 3).

Unamortized debt issuance costs of $395,632 at June 30, 2023, which were incurred to secure the construction
financing will be recognized as a loss on extinguishment of debt in 2024.

NOTE 3 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial position date but before
financial statements are available to be issued. MRCC recognizes in the financial statements the effects of all
subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the date of the statement of
financial position, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the financial statements. MRCC'’s
financial statements do not recognize subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the date of the statement of financial position but arose after the statement of financial position date and before
financial statements were available to be issued.

On August 7, 2023, ECA-Corporate announced that they are affiliating with Transforming Age and that ECA-
Corporate and their communities will be joining the Transforming Age network. By combining their expertise,
together the two organizations aim to strengthen and grow their mission impact and better address the evolving
needs of older adults, across the economic spectrum. The legal structure of MRCC is not changing, ECA-
Corporate remains the sole corporate member of MRCC. The affiliation is pending California Attorney General
approval.

10




Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Notes to Continuing Care Liquid Reserve Schedules

Transforming Age is one of the nation’s largest nonprofit senior living providers, serving more than 100,000 older
adults by integrating housing, community services, technology, philanthropy, and partnerships. Transforming Age
is recognized for its robust nonprofit mission, commitment to creating a culture of excellence, and diverse network
of affiliates that serve older adults across the economic spectrum.

Under this new affiliation, both organizations will leverage their combined strengths to broaden their service
offerings, providing older adults with an expanded array of programs, innovative care options, and sustainable
housing solutions.

On October 27, 2023, MRCC entered into a $24,500,000 Term Loan agreement secured by real estate with
CalBT for the purpose of refinancing the existing construction note payable which had expired on October 23,
2023. In addition, MRCC terminated the interest rate swaps associated with the construction note payabie for
$3,451,725. MRCC also transferred $1,129,374 to CalBT prior to finalizing the commercial term loan agreement.

Total proceeds of $28,081,099 from the three transactions above were used as follows:
o $24,469,659 to pay off the existing construction note payable,
e $3,943,000 to be held in a pledged bank account with CalBT, and
o $548,869 of debt issuance costs.

The CalBT loan agreement requires principal plus interest payments based on a 25-year amortization and a
floating interest rate equal to 79.00% of the all-in rate which is equal to 30-day term Secured Overnight Financing
Rate plus a spread of 2.92%. The floating interest rate has been hedged via the Swap to provide a fixed rate of
6.20% to MRCC. The underlying notional amount of the Swap is $24,500,000 as of the October 27, 2023
effective date. The Term Loan provides a 42-month commitment with a 24-month extension option based on

certain metrics being met.
Management fees and the note payable to ECA-Corporate are subordinate to the CalBT loan.

The $548,869 debt issuance costs will be amortized to interest expense over the 42-month commitment period.

11 See accompanying notes.
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Attachment to Form 5-1 and 5-2

13

Attachment to Form 5-1 and Form 5-2

Interest paid during Fiscal Year per Form 5-1
Interest paid during Fiscal Year per Form 5-2

Cash paid for interest per Statement of Cash Flows

$

$

924,053

924,053




Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Attachment to Form 5-4

Attachment to Form 5-4

Net Patient and Resident Services Income (Line 2 e)
Revenue, Gains and Other Support - Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

per the statement of activities and changes in net assets $ 22,485,658
Less: In-kind food contributions (4,561,052)
Less: Net assets releases from restrictions for operations (1,467,043)
Net Patient and Resident Services Income (Line 2 e) $ 16,457,563

CCRC Revenue Allocation

CCRC Amount Non-CCRC Amount Total Amount

Residential & Assisted Living $ 267,383 $ 3,658,505 $ 3,925,888
Memory Care 95,224 2,469,824 2,565,048
Skilled Nursing 69,736 9,408,067 9,477,803
Entrance Fees 18,961 - 18,961
Charitable Adjustments - (51,764) (51,764)
Contractual Allowances - (171,411) (171,411)
Subtotal Room & Board 451,304 15,313,221 15,764,525
Gross Ancillary Revenue - 537,664 537,664
Other Operating Revenue** - 155,374 155,374
Total Room & Board Revenue $ 451,304 $ 16,006,259 $ 16,457,563

**Note: Included in other operating revenue are reimbursements received for services provided to
non-residents, such as guest accommodations and meals, and miscellaneous vendor refunds.

Operating Expense

Operating Expense per the statement of activities and changes in net assets $ 27,810,569
Less: Donated Food (4,437,917)
Total Operating Expense on Form 5-4 (Line 1) $ 23,372,652

CCRC Depreciation and amortization
Line 2(c) & (d)

Line 2(c) - Depreciation $ 1,991,537
Line 2(d) - Amortization -

Depreciation and depletion, per
the statement of activities and changes in net assets $ 1,991,537

14




Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Attachment to Form 5-5

FORM 5-5 RESERVES [ Per Audited Financial Statements - 06/30/23 |
Assets Limited
as to Use -
Externally Net Assets
Restricted by with Donor
Donor Investments Cash Restrictions
Per Financial Statements $ 3665920 $ 6610269 § 1,548,834 | $ 5,352,747 |
Less:
Reserves maintained by MRCC excluded from Qualifying Assets:
1 Endowments for Charitable Care $ 3,665,920 §$ - $ - $ 3,665,920
{2) Capital campaign amounts for revitalization project - - 22,411 22,411
2) Donations for food program serving low income seniors - - 392,923 392,923
{2) Donations for chapel renovation - - 405,129 405,129
{2) Donations for wish list, other - - 25,873 25,873
Total cash and investment reserves maintained by MRCC at June 30, 2023 3,665,920 - 846,336 4,512,256
Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions $ - $ 6,610,269 $ 702,498
Qualifying Assets - Form 5-5 Line 4 Cash - Operating Reserve $ - $ - 702,498
Qualifying Assets - Form 5-5 Line 5 Investments - Debt Service - 1,783,326 -
Qualifying Assets - Form 5-5 Line 5 Investments - Operating Reserve - 4,826,943 -
$ - $ 6,610,269 $ 702,498
Capital campaign Pledges included in Pledge and Other Receivables per Financial
Statements 840,491
Total Net Assets With Donor Restrictions per Financial Statements $ 5,352,747

1)
(2)
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Donor designated investments for charitable care, including $2,939,874 permanently restricted
Donor designated cash generally to be used in FY2024 for operating expenses and revitalization
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State of California — Health and Human Services Agency California Department of Social Services

CONTINUING CARE RETIREMENT COMMUNITY

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
Date Prepared: 11/01/2023

Facility Name: Mercy Retirement and Care Center

Address: 3431 Foothill Blvd, Oakland | Zip Code:94601 Phone510-534-8540
Provider Name:

Mercy Retirement and Care Center

Facility Operator: Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Religious Affiliation: Sisters of Mercy of the Americas

Year Opened: 1872 # of Acres:4.5 Miles to Shopping Center: 5 Miles to Hospital: 2.5
Q Single Story Q Multi-Story Other:Both
Number of Units:
Residential Living Number of Units Health Care Number of Units
Apartments — Studio: Assisted Living: 85
Apartments — 1 Bdrm: Skilled Nursing: 59
Apartments — 2 Bdrm: Special Care: 22
Cottages/Houses: Description: Special Care - Dementia.

RLU Occupancy (%) at Year End:  Due to renovation project 22 AL units offline FY20, 21, 22

Type of Ownership: @ Not for Profit Accredited? Q Yes By:
Q For Profit ¥ No
Form of Contact: ¥ Continuing Care Q Life Care QO Entrance Fee Q Fee for Service
(Check all that apply) Q Assignment of Assets QO Equity U Membership QO Rental
Refund Provisions: Q1 Refundable Q90% 0 50%
(Check all that apply) QO Repayable Q75% Q Other: Fully Amortized
Range of Entrance Fees: $10.000 - $10.000

Long-Term Care Insurance Required? QOYes 4 No

Health Care Benefits Included in Contract:None

Entry Requirements: Min Age:60 Prior Profession: None Other:None

Resident Representative(s) to, and Resident Members on, the Board:
(briefly describe provider’s compliance and residents’ roles):

Resident Member joined the MRCC Board of Directors effective December 1, 2021.
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State of California — Health and Human Services Agency California Department of Social Services

All providers are required by Health and Safety Code section 1789.1 to provide this report to prospective
residents before executing a deposit agreement or continuing care contract or receiving any payment. Many
communities are part of multi-facility operations which may influence financial reporting. Consumers are
encouraged to ask questions of the continuing care retirement community that they are considering and to
seek advice from professional advisors.

Facility Services and Amenities

Comm0|'1 .Area Available Fee for Services Available Ir!cluded For Extra

Amenities Service in Fee  Charge
Beauty/Barber Shop a Housekeeping (4 _Times/ a
Billiard Room a Q Month at $ each)
Bowling Green Q Qa Meals (3_/Day) 0
Card Rooms Q Special Diets Available Q a
Chapel a a
Coffee Shop - Q 24-Hour Emergency Response 0
Craft Rooms "] Q o
Exercise Room ] a ACt'V'F'_e,S P:Eogram Ph N
Golf Course Access a . QII Utilities ch.:etpt one a
Library a 0 Cp:tm_re\;lt aintenance a
Putting Green Q Q 'a © _
Shuffleboard . Q L!nens Eurnlshedd Q
Spa 0 0 l'\_llln:ps t.aur;\;liere t Q
Swimming Pool - Qa a © '_ca 'on anager?n?n 4
Indoor Nursing/Wellness Clinic Q

Personal Home Care r F

Swimming Pool — Q Q ] a
Outdoor Transportat!on — Personal

) Transportation — Prearranged "] Q
Tennis Court Q a
Workshop 0 0 Other: Rehab.therapy a
Other: a Q
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State of California — Health and Human Services Agency California Department of Social Services

Provider Name:

Affiliated CCRCs Location (city, state) Phone (with area code)

Multi-Level Retirement

Communities Location (city, state) Phone (with area code)
Free-Standing Skilled Nursing Location (city, state) Phone (with area code)
Subsidized Senior Housing Location (city, state) Phone (with area code)

NOTE: Please indicate if the facility is a life care facility.
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State of California — Health and Human Services Agency

California Department of Social Services

Provider Name: Mercy Retirement and Care Center

Income and Expenses [Year] 2020 2021 2022 2023
Income from Ongoing Operations

Operating Income

(Excluding amortization of entrance fee

income) $15,973 $14,652 $14,044 $16,438
Less Operating Expenses

(Excluding depreciation, amortization,

and interest) (16,427) (17,030) (17,709) (20,447)
Net Income From Operations (454) (2,378) (3,665) (4009)
Less Interest Expense 0 (5) (113) (933)
Plus Contributions 363 104 264 086

Plus Non-Operating Income

(Expenses)

(Excluding extraordinary items) 1,722 3,956 1,354 3290

Net Income (Loss) Before Entrance

Fees, Depreciation And Amortization $1,631 $1,277 $(2,160) $(666)
Net Cash Flow From Entrance Fees

(Total Deposits Less Refunds) 0 0 0 101
Description of Secured Debt (as of most recent fiscal year end)

Outstanding Interest Date of Date of Amortization
Lender Balance Rate Origination  Maturity Period

PNC Bank $24,640,773 4.51% |3/25/2022 10/23/2023

Note: Re-Financed 10/27/23
Financial Ratios (see last page for ratio formulas)

CCAC Medians 50th

Financial Ratios [Year] Percentile (optional) 2021 2022 2023
Debt to Asset Ratio 28.54% 2.49% 43.56%
Operating Ratio 116.22% 126.90% 130.07%
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 12.26% 837.74% 174.29%
Days Cash On Hand Ratio 365 254.86 139.29
LIC 9273 (5/22) Page 4 of 5
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Provider Name: Mercy Retirement and Care Center

Historical Monthly Service Fees (Average Fee and Change Percentage)

Residence/Service [Year] 2020 % 2021 % 2022 % 2023 %
Studio

One Bedroom

Cottage/House

Assisted Living $4,803 |2.56% [$4,992 |3.94% |$4,675 [6.12% ($5,027 |7.53
Skilled Living $12,555 (4.11% |$13,214 |5.25% ($13,281 |6.78% |$14,325 (7.86
Special Care $6,973 |3.06% |$7,370 |5.70% ($7,411 |3.16% |$7,939 |7.11

Comments from Provider:

Increases in average fees due to labor cost increases, elevated plant expenses, insurance
increases, and support increases.

Financial Ratio Formulas

Long-Term Debt to Total Assets Ratio Operating Ratio
Total Operating Expenses - Depreciation
Long Term Debt, less Current portion Expense - Amortization Expense
Total Assets Total Operating Revenues — Amortization

of Deferred Revenue

Debt Service Coverage Ratio Days Cash On Hand Ratio
Total Excess of Revenues Over Expenses Unrestricted Current Cash & Investments
+ Interest, Depreciation, and Amortization + Unrestricted Non-Current Cash and
Expenses + Amortization of Deferred Revenue Investments

+ Net Proceeds from Entrance Fees
(Operating Expenses - Depreciation -
Annual Debt Service Amortization)/365

NOTE: These formulas are also used by the Continuing Care Accreditation Commission. For each
formula, that organization also publishes annual median figures for certain continuing care retirement
communities.
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California Health and Human Services Agency California Department of Social Services

FORM 7-1 REPORT ON CCRC MONTHLY CARE FEES

Complete Form 7-1 to report the monthly care fee increase (MCFI) for each community operated by the Provider. If no adjustments
were made during the reporting period for a community, indicate by checking the box below Line [2]. Providers must complete a
separate Form 7-1 for each of their continuing care retirement communities.

1. On Line 1, enter the amount of monthly care fees for each level of care at the beginning of the reporting period.
2. On Line 2, indicate the percentage(s) of increase in fees implemented during the reporting period.

3. On Line 3, indicate the date the fee increase was implemented. If more than one (1) increase was implemented, indicate the
date(s) for each increase.

4. Check each of the appropriate boxes.

5. Provide a detailed explanation for the increase in monthly care fees including the total dollar amount for the community overall
and corresponding percentage increase for each level of care in compliance with the Health and Safety Code. The explanation
shall set forth the reasons, by department cost centers, for any increase in monthly care fee. It must include if the change in
monthly care fees is due to any actual or projected costs related to any other CCRC community or enterprise affiliated with the
provider or parent company.

The methodology used to budget future costs should align with one or more of the following factors: “projected costs, prior year per
capita costs and economic indicators.” Describe the methodology used for single or multiple communities. If there are multiple MCFI
percentages, i.e., by level of care, a separate explanation for each MCFI will be required.

Also, if there is a positive result of operations, the provider will need to explain how the funds will be used and/or distributed
consistent with disclosures made in the applicable sections of the Continuing Care Contract.

This attachment should include the data used in the Monthly Care Fee Increase meeting presentation provided to
residents, which will also include actual results and an explanation of any variances.

NOTE: Providers shall retain all documents related to the development of adjusted fees at their respective communities for a period
of at least three years, i.e., budgets, statements of operations, cost reports, used near the end of the prior fiscal year to develop
adjustments implemented in the current reporting period. These documents must be available for review upon request by the
Department.
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FORM 7-1

RESIDENTIAL ASSISTED MEMORY SKILLED
LIVING LIVING CARE NURSING
Monthly Care Fees at beginning of reporting period: (indicate
range, if applicable) 4,500-6,200 7,375-7,775 13175-15252
Indicate percentage of increase in fees imposed during
reporting period: (indicate range, if applicable) 5.0%-7.5% 5.0%-7.1% 5.0%-7.9%

[J Check here if monthly care fees at this community were not increased during the reporting period. (If you checked this box,
please skip down to the bottom of this form and specify the names of the provider and community.)

Indicate the date the fee increase was implemented:7/1/22 and 4/1/23
(If more than one (1) increase was implemented, indicate the dates for each increase.)

Check each of the appropriate boxes:
Wl Each fee increase is based on the Provider’s projected costs, prior year per capita costs, and economic indicators.

W All affected residents were given written notice of this fee increase at least 30 days prior to its implementation.

Date of Notice: AL4/30/22 & 1/31/23 Method of Notice: Letter
CC 5/31/22 & 2/28/23 .
W1 At least 30 days prior to the increase in fees, the designated representative of the Provider convened a meeting that all

residents were invited to attend. Date of Meeting: 5/25/22 and 1/25/23

W1 At the meeting with residents, the Provider discussed and explained the reasons for the increase, the basis for determining
the amount of the increase, and the data used for calculating the increase.

¥l The Provider distributed the documents to all residents by [Optional - check all that apply]:
[0 Emailed the documents to those residents for whom the provider had email addresses on file
O Placed hard copies in resident cubby
¥l Placed hard copies at designated locations
¥ Provided hard copies to residents upon request, and/or
O Other: [please describe]
[0 Date of Notice:
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O The Provider provided residents with at least 14 days advance notice of each meeting held to discuss the fee increases.
Date of Notice:

LI The governing body of the Provider, or the designated representative of the Provider posted the notice of, and the agenda
for, the meeting in a conspicuous place in the community at least 14 days prior to the meeting.

Date of Posting: Location of Posting:

O Providers evaluated the effectiveness of consultations during the annual budget planning process at a minimum of every
two years by the continuing care retirement community administration. The evaluation, including any policies adopted
relating to cooperation with residents was made available to the resident association or its governing body, or, if neither
exists, to a committee of residents at least 14 days prior to the next semiannual meeting of residents and the Provider’s
governing body and posted a copy of that evaluation in a conspicuous location at each facility.

Date of Posting: Location of Posting:

5. On an attached page, provide a detailed explanation for the increase in monthly care fees including the amount of the increase
and compliance with the Health and Safety Code.

PROVIDER: Mercy Retirement and Care Center COMMUNITY: Mercy Retirement and Care Center
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Mercy Retirement and Care
Center Year Ended June 30,
2023

Form 7-1, ltem 5 Explanation for Increase in Monthly Services

Increase in Percent Explanation
Residential Living 0% N/A
Assisted Living/Memory Care 7/1/22 Assisted Living/Memory Care room rates were increased b by
5.00%- 5.00% 5.24% at 7/1/22, and by 6.00%-8.01% at 4/1/23 due to
5.24% increases in overall operating expenses during the year ended
June 30, 2023. More modest room rate increases were
4/1/23 implement during the past few years due to the pandemic
6.00%- despite rising costs, resulting in the acceleration of the FY24
8.01% increase from 7/1/23 to 4/1/23. Labor costs increased by 13%.
Wages rates in FY2023 increased approximately 3-7% due to
wage inflation and the impacts of a tightening job market,
especially for care staff. Moreover, there was higher
utilization of higher cost outside agency staffing. Plant
expenses in FY23 were up 65% as compared to FY22 due to
necessary major property repairs. Additionally, benefits costs
were increasing along with increases in property and other
insurance costs. Food and medical supply costs also
continued to increase, with cost increases of 1-5%.
Skilled Nursing 7/1/23  80% of our skilled nursing rooms are occupied by MediCal and
5.00% Medicare patients, 10% by contractual HMO patients, and
10% by private pay patients. MediCal and MediCare rates are
4/1/23 [djusted annually based on our cost reports. New rates from
10.72%- [the governing agencies are generally implemented in October
10.92% (each year. Skilled Nursing base room rates for private pay

patients were increased by 5.0% at 7/1/22 and by 10.72%-
10.92%, at 4/1/23. Labor costs increased by 22%, Wage rates
in FY2023 increased approximately 3-7% due to wage inflation
and market rates for staff, with significant inflation in specific
care positions. Moreover, there was higher utilization of
higher cost outside agency staffing. Employee medical costs
also increased approximate by 7%. Food, energy, plant, and
benefit costs also continued to increase, similar to AL/MC
operational costs.
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Mercy Retirement and Care Center
Key Indicators Report
For FY2023

Explanations of significant trends:

1

2)

3)

4)

Average Occupancy — The decrease from 90% to 72% occupancy level in FY2020 to
FY2022 was due to the renovation project which started in FY2019 as well as the impact
of COVID on congregate living settings. Note that the FY2020 through March 2022
occupancy excludes the 22 offline units, while the FY2023 and later years reflects all
rooms on-line post construction. The construction project took a floor of rooms offline
(22 rooms, approximately 25% of Assisted Living capacity) and was substantially
completed by March 31, 2022. The number of average residents increased by 11 from
FY22 to FY2023, while the occupancy percentage remained at 73% due to the additional
22 units placed in service in March 2022. Lease-up of the community is underway, with
increased investments in sales and marketing capacity, and occupancy is expected to
increase substantially in FY2024 (26 units to 89% occupancy).

Net Operating Margin — Mercy has experienced decreasing net operating margins over
the past several years, with cost increases outpacing rate increases and the impact of the
COVID pandemic, with pressure on census, increased staff benefits for COVID sick leaves
and requirements for infection control resources and staffing. Staffing in the Assisted
Living unit was maintained at full capacity during the construction, which further impacted
profitability. Margins would have been impacted further if not for the impact of HHS
funding and other COVID-related supports. FY2023 was also negatively impacted by
$700k of unanticipated repair expenses and an increase of $900k and $800k in outside
labor and salaries and benefits respectively. FY2021, FY2022, and FY2023 net operating
margin includes the positive impact of restricted revenues being earned (approximately
$1.0, $3.4M and $1.9 million, respectively) for the construction project, through
philanthropic donations. Net operating margins are projected to increase in FY2024 due
to higher occupancy from 73% to 89%, as well as standard annual price increases of 7-
8% implemented April 1, 2023 to address wage inflation and other market cost increases.
Additional census growth increases profitability with limited incremental variable costs.
Use of outside labor is projected to decrease from FY2023 levels.

Net Operating Margin—Adjusted — Mercy actively marketed the CCRC contract to
prospective residents, with 11 move-ins in FY2023. Now that the construction has been
completed, there are more amenity spaces to attract and serve new CCRC residents. A
lower entrance fee has been positioned to drive CCRC resident contracts more quickly.
Given the more limited entrance fee, the impact on margins is less significant than that
projected in the FY2021 report. With attrition in the number of CCRC residents, we have
conservatively projected that with annual new CCRC contracts of onef/year, we will
maintain the number of CCRC-contracted residents at 11 through FY2027. We had 2.8%
of resident revenues from CCRC-contracted residents in FY2023, growing to 6% of
resident revenues by FY2025.

Unrestricted Cash and Investments — With the increase in profitability from occupancy
increases, partially offset by planned capital spending and construction-related debt
payments, cash and Investments are forecasted to increase in FY2024 compared to
FY2023 by approximately $1.5 million to $11.0 million and by another $6.5 from FY2024
to FY2028.



5)

7)

8)

9)

Days Cash on Hand — Days cash on hand has been declining over the past several
years, due to the impact of the construction on available capacity and reductions in
profitability. However, overall cash flows remain strong and days’ cash on hand will
increase starting in 2024 as operational cash flows expand to further cover debt payments
and capital expenditures. Days cash on hand will remain strong through the reported
periods at 200 days+ - even with the limited entrance fees required.

Deferred Revenue from Entrance Fees — Based on the new pricing for entrance fees,
the amortization period (2 years) and the anticipated number of contracts for new CCRC
residents, we are projecting deferred revenue of approximately $56k and $42k in FY2024
and FY2025, respectively and $10k/year each year following. These forecasts are
considered to be conservative, given the value of the CCRC contract and the sales and
marketing teams continue to actively market this option with the goal of exceeding the
forecasted estimates.

Net Annual Entrance Fee proceeds — Based on the forecasted new CCRC-contracted
residents and the revised entrance fee pricing, the annual proceeds from the entrance
fees are estimated to be $10k/year.

Unrestricted Net Assets — For FY2024 and beyond, unit rental rate increases of
approximately 5-8% are expected to help offset wage and benefit increases of 3-5%.
Offsetting this improvement is the impact of increased depreciation expense associated
with fixed asset purchases, as well as increased interest expense associated with the
higher interest rate of the new loan. Unrestricted Net Assets remain relatively flat from
FY2023 to FY2024 then increase in FY2025-2028.

Annual Capital Asset Expenditures —Mercy has spent approximately $36.9M as part
of a major revitalization project. 22 rooms were taken off line in late 2019 and were
available for occupancy by April 1, 2022. Following the revitalization project’'s completion,
anticipated capital expenditures will decline significantly to $500k in FY2024, and then
increasing to $1M annually for FY2025 and FY2026 and $1.5M for FY2027 and FY2028
as needs gradually increase again.

10) Annual Debt Service Coverage (Revenue Basis) — Mercy obtained a new term loan

to replace the expired construction loan on October 27, 2023 which is reflected in the June
30, 2023 balance sheet. Mercy had debt of approximately $26.1M at June 30, 2023,
including a note payable of $1.5M to Elder Care Alliance, Mercy’s management company;
a term loan of $24.5 million; and a remaining construction loan balance of $141k. The
$1.5M related party debt is all long-term and subordinate to the term loan. $24.2M of the
term loan is reflected as long-term debt and $0.3M is included as current debt. The
FY2024 and beyond annual debt service coverage is based on the assumption of a 25-
year amortizing loan, at current market interest rates of 6.2%.

11) Annual Debt Service Coverage — Similar to the annual debt service coverage indicator

noted in 10) above, the annual debt service coverage ratio reflects the additional impacts
of the entrance fees on the coverage calculations.

12) Annual Debt Service/Revenue (%) — The increase of the annual debt service/revenue

percentage is a result of the build-up of the construction loan as the costs were incurred
through completion in March 2022 and project wind-down in September 2022. During the
construction loan period, there was limited debt service and thus the percentage was low.

2




Upon the completion of the project, repayments are required and the percentage will
increase in FY2024-2025. This percentage decreases in FY2026 as the loan payments
are consistent and revenues grow over time.

13) Average Annual Effective Interest Rate (%) — The interest rate on the construction
loan debt which was paid off on October 27, 2023 was a blend of the floating interest rate
on the construction loan, offset by the net interest settled on the associated fixed rate
interest rate swaps with interest rates ranging from approximately 1.1% to 3.43%. The
interest rate on the new term loan is a blend of a floating interest rate offset by swaps to
provide a fixed rate of 6.2%. Additionally, the note payable to Elder Care Alliance bears
interest at 2.5%. The effective interest rate was calculated by dividing the interest paid
into the balance of the underlying debt balance.

14) Unrestricted Cash & Investments/Long-Term Debt (%) — This percentage reflects the
unrestricted cash and investments available to pay long-term debt. As the cash and
investments balance grows, and there are continued debt payments on the term loan, this
percentage will increase — from 32% in FY2023 to 69% in FY2027.

15) Average Age of Facility (Years) — The average age of the facility has decreased as the
revitalization project investments were underway. However, with the project complete, the
facility will age over the forecasted period.



